
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
October 5, 2015 

Executive Session – 6:15 P.M. 
Regular - 7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session: Consultation with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of September 21, 2015 
b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka as 

Deputy Wardens for the November 3, 2015 Election 
c) Approval of the Election Warrant for November 3, 2015  
d) Appointment of the Voter Registration Appeals Board 

 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 

a) Update on Solarize Brunswick 
b) Sewer District Election update 
c) Absentee ballot reminder  
d) Discussion of CIP process for upcoming budget year 
e) River Road update 

 
  



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
97. The Town Council will hear public comments on applications for Special Amusement 

Licenses, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
AKI, LLC 
D/B/A: AKI Japanese Cuisine   Tina & Laura Cigri/V. Ly & B Liu 
94 Maine Street 
 
Frontier Group 
D/B/A: Frontier     Michael Gilroy 
14 Maine Street  
 
Nelson Moody 
D/B/A: Yankee Lanes     Nelson Moody 
276 Bath Road 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
98. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing the 

Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick 
High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  
(RESCHEDULED FROM SEPTEMBER 21st MEETING) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
99. The Town Council will consider a recommendation from the Rivers and Coastal Waters 

Commission regarding setting mooring fees in the amount of $25 for resident, private, 
commercial, or rental moorings, and $50 for nonresidents, and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker)  

ACTION 
 
100. The Town Council will discuss the draft “Social Services Funding Policy,” and determine 

if any future action is required.  (Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, and Councilor K. 
Wilson)  

DISCUSSION 
 
101. The Town Council will consider adopting a “A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation 

and Grant of up to $200,000 from Available Tax Increment Financing Proceeds to the 
Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority,” and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Watson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Harris) 

ACTION 
 



3 
 

102. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for October 19, 2015, on a 
“Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of 
Funding the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds,” and to adopt “An Order 
Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of a Sidewalk 
Tractor,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
103. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521)



4 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

October 5, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into executive session for Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA 
versus Town of Brunswick per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of September 21, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka as Deputy 

Wardens for the  November 3, 2015 Election:  These are appointments for the November 
election.   

c) Approval of the Election Warrant for November 3, 2015:  A copy of the warrant is inccluded 
in your packet. 

d) Appointment of the Voter Registration Appeals Board:  State law requires that the Council 
appoint three members to the Voter Registration Appeals Board.  This board hears appeals 
for voters regarding decisions of the Registrar of Voters.  (It has yet to meet in Brunswick, 
but is still required to exist.)  The make-up of the committee is as follows: one person 
nominated by the municipal Democratic Party, one nominated by the municipal Republican 
Party, and a third person nominated by the Town Clerk.  The following is the slate for your 
consideration – Trish Riley as the Democratic member, Mark Holbrook as the Republican 
member, and Doug Rice as the Town Clerk’s nomination.  The final nomination is a 
replacement for Mike Feldman, who has moved out of town. 

 
The Council always has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be 
considered separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Update on Solarize Brunswick:  This item is to provide an update for this project.  ReVision 

Energy of Portland, Maine was selected as the Town’s partner installer for the 2015-2016 
Solarize Brunswick program.  Linda Smith will provide a brief update.  A copy of a press 
release is included in your packet. 



5 
 

b) Sewer District Election update:  Lenny Blanchette from the Sewer District will provide a 
brief update on this election that is being held in conjunction with the Town and State’s 
November 3rd Elections. 

c) Absentee ballot reminder:  Town Clerk Fran Smith will remind citizens that absentee ballots 
are now available for the November 3rd Elections.  They will be available to request or to 
vote in person up to Thursday, October 29th, with the office open until 7:00 p.m. that 
evening. 

d) Discussion of CIP process for upcoming budget year:  Manager Eldridge will provide the 
Council and public with an overview of the Capital Improvement Plan process for the Fiscal 
Year 2016-17. 

e) River Road update:  This item is to update the public on the damages due to the recent heavy 
rains. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
97. This is the required public hearing for renewal applications for Special Amusement 

Licenses.  AKI would like to have dance music provided by DJs and bands; Frontier 
would like to have live music; and Yankee Lanes is requesting DJs and live bands.  These 
are renewals and no restrictions have been placed on them in the past three years.  Copies 
of the public hearing notice and applications are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion 
Motion to approve the following applications for Special Amusement Licenses: AKI 
Japanese Cuisine, located at 94 Maine Street; Frontier, located at 14 Maine Street; and 
Yankee Lanes, located at 276 Bath Road. 

 
98. This item is the rescheduled public hearing for this proposed ordinance.  As discussed at 

previous meetings, the Town’s 2016‐20 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
recommends funding the replacement of boilers and related equipment at Brunswick 
High School.  (The School Department had requested the public hearing be moved 
forward from the original September 21st date.)  Originally the replacement was 
scheduled to take place in the 2016‐17 fiscal year, but the School Department is now 
recommending that this project be moved to the current fiscal year.  The estimated cost of 
the project is $575,000.  This project is replacing the High School track reconstruction, 
which had been scheduled for this year.  Members of the School Department will be 
available to answer questions.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, relative pages 
from the CIP, a proposed bond ordinance, and a projected amortization schedule for the 
bonds are included in your packet.   

 
(Please note the Council rules state the following:  “Once the public hearing is closed, 
the Council will determine if any action is necessary as allowed under the Council rules 
and the Town Charter, but the Council is encouraged to postpone action until a future 
meeting to allow for the consideration of the public comments.”)  

 
  



6 
 

Suggested Motion, if the Council moves forward on a vote at this meeting:  
Motion to adopt “An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler 
and Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs 
Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus 
cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.” 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
99. This item, sponsored by Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker, is for the Council to 

hear the recommendation of the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission regarding 
mooring fees in the amount of $25 for resident, private, commercial, or rental moorings, 
and $50 for nonresidents.  A resident mooring owner is defined as someone who lives in 
Brunswick more than six months a year, pays Brunswick real estate property taxes, or is a 
registered voter in Brunswick.  In addition, there is a provision for someone who installs 
a helix mooring in an eel grass habitat to pay no fees for this mooring for five years.  The 
Commission discussed this at several meetings beginning in June and held a public forum 
on September 23rd.  At this time the Commission requests this fee schedule be 
implemented by the Council.  Dan Devereaux and committee members will be available 
to answer questions.  A copy of a memo from Mark Worthing, Chair of RCWC, is 
included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to direct staff to draft ordinance amendments to reflect the RCWC recommended 
fees as outlined in their memo dated September 30, 2015.  

 
100. This item is for the Council to discuss the draft “Social Services Funding Policy,” as 

prepared by the Social Services Committee, consisting of Councilor Perreault, Councilor 
Harris, and Councilor K. Wilson.  They have met several times and drafted a policy and 
application for the Council’s feedback.  The Committee chose to recommend limiting 
grant funds to agencies that provide food, clothing, and shelter.  With the difficult fiscal 
times, they also recommend that funding be limited to a total of $20,000 per fiscal year.  
Copies of a memo, the draft policy, and application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
This is a discussion item, with the Council providing guidance for future action, if any. 

 
101. This item is sponsored by the TIF Committee, composed of Councilor Watson, Councilor 

Perreault, and Councilor Harris.  It is for the Council to consider adopting “A Resolution 
Authorizing an Appropriation and Grant of up to $200,000 from Available Tax Increment 
Financing Proceeds to the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority.”  In April 
MRRA met with the Town’s TIF Committee to request that funds be released for 
MRRA’s use. With settlement of a pending declaratory judgment lawsuit close,  the TIF 
Committee met on September 22nd and agreed to recommend that the Town provide 
$200,000 of TIF funds to MRRA for its sewer collection upgrade project.  Copies of a 
memo from Manager Eldridge, a draft resolution and draft minutes from the Committee 
are included in your packet.	 

 



7 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation and Grant of up to 
$200,000 from Available Tax Increment Financing Proceeds to the Midcoast Regional 
Redevelopment Authority.” 

 
102. This item is for the Council to consider setting a public hearing for October 19, 2015, on 

“Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of 
Funding the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds.” The funding is coming from a 
refund from the Maine PERS.   In addition, due to the lead time to order one of the 
sidewalk tractors, there will be a request to adopt an order that will authorize the Town 
Manager to move forward with the purchase of this item so the Town will have it prior to 
winter.  Copies of memos from Manager Eldridge and Mr. Farrell, a draft resolution, and 
order are included in your packet. 
 
(Town Charter, Section 504 Adoption and amendment of the budget states the following 
regarding budget amendments: “Upon the recommendation of the Town Manager, the 
Town Council may amend the budget. The Council shall hold a public hearing at least 10 
days prior to the adoption of any amendment. Any amendment that seeks to increase the 
amount of the total budget appropriations for the year shall only be made from 
unappropriated available revenue.”) 

 
Suggested Motions:  
Motion 1: 
Motion to set a public hearing for October 19, 2015, on “Resolution Amending the 2015-
16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of Funding the Vehicle and 
Equipment Reserve Funds,”  
 
Motion 2 
Motion to adopt “An Order Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Contract for the 
Purchase of a Sidewalk Tractor.” 

 
103. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the Committee’s report and corresponding 
applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
them. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
September 21, 2015 

6:00 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. 

Perreault, Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, 
Katherine E. Wilson, and John Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk; Steve 

Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Linda Smith, Business Development 
Manager; Cathy Jamison, Assessor;  Anna Breinich, Director of 
Planning and Development; Tom Farrell; Parks and Recreation 
Director; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; Julie Henze, Finance Director; 
Terry Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to go into Executive Session 
for a consultation with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of Brunswick per 1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E).  Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, and Councilor S. 
Wilson arrived after the vote. 
 
Meeting Resumes: 
 
Chair Brayman resumed the meeting and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda  
 
Item 95 will be postponed to Oct 5th  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 
a) Approval of the Minutes of September 8, 2015 
b) Selection of MMA Voting Delegation for Annual Meeting 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda. The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Richardson abstained since 
he was not at the September 8th meeting. 



Town Council Minutes 
September 21, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:04 p.m.) 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, commented on the High School boiler replacement and the 
cost to repair one of the boilers.  He would like a tour of the boilers. 
 
Gerald Favreau, 21 Riverview Drive, thanked Bowdoin College for the great job they did 
restoring the Harriet Beecher Stowe House. 
 
Amanda Bunker, Conservation Commission, provided an update on their activities and also 
discussed Community Field Day at Furbish Preserve on September 30th. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:11 p.m.) 
 
Chair Brayman spoke regarding an email from Bowdoin College President Clayton Rose 
regarding inappropriate racial comments made towards students by community members. 
 
(A copy of the email will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Millett spoke regarding the 10x10 Art Sale to be held on September 25th at the 
library. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:14 p.m.) 
 
Reports were given on the following committees: Social Service Policy Task Force, TIF 
Committee, Finance Committee, Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission, and the Recycling 
& Sustainability Committee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
a) Financial Update  (This item was discussed at 7:21 p.m.)     
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
b) Recognition of Terry Goan being named the Best Police Officer in Mid-Coast Maine 

(This item was discussed at 7:24 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge recognized Officer Goan for this award. 
 
(A copy of the Times Record article will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
c) Report on the names for trails on the Kate Furbish Preserve  (This item was 

discussed at 7:28 p.m.) 
 
Bridger Tomlin, Bowdoin Fellow, made a presentation on this item.   



Town Council Minutes 
September 21, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
Manager Eldridge, Councilor K. Wilson, Chair Brayman, and Councilor Millett asked 
questions and made comments. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge and Mr. Farrell responded. 
 
(A copy of a memo and a map of the trails, along with a PowerPoint presentation, will be 
attached to the official minutes.)  
 
d) Review of FOAA responsibilities  (This item was discussed at 7:50 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided information on this item.   
 
Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney, also spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson, Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
e) Marine Resources update  (This item was discussed at 7:56 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor 
Walker. 
 
f) Report on Tobacco Free Zones to now include vaping products (smokeless 

cigarettes)   (This item was discussed at 8:01 p.m.) 
 
Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation, spoke regarding this item and responded to 
questions from Councilor Millett. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Tom Farrell and the adopted resolution will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
g) (ADDED) Hazardous Waste Day reminder (This item was discussed at 8:07 p.m.) 
 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, spoke regarding this item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
94. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Automobile 

Graveyard and Junkyard application, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:08 p.m.) 
 
Shawn Letourneau 
D/B/A: Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC    Shawn Letourneau 
117 Bath Road 

 



Town Council Minutes 
September 21, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Smith spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the applications 
for Automobile Graveyard and Junkyard licenses for Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC., 
located at 117 Bath Road.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
95. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing 

the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at 
Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus 
any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of 
Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), 
plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:11 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to continue the date of the 
public hearing to October 5, 2015, and re-advertise “An Ordinance Authorizing the 
Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick 
High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
96. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing 

the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All Taxable 
Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of 
Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other 
costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and 
Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any 
Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:13 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Cathy Jamison, Assessor, made a presentation. 
 
Councilor Richardson and Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 21, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

The following members of the public spoke:  
 Sally Ward, 5 Franklin Street 
 Sue Stableford, 12 Larkspur Lane 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault.  
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Millett, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Harris, Chair 
Brayman, and Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Mr. Langsdorf spoke regarding this item.  
 
FIRST MOTION: 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to move forward with the vote 
tonight. The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Watson, Councilor Perreault, 
and Chair Brayman were opposed. 
 
SECOND MOTION: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance 
Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All 
Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of 
Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”   
 
The following Councilors spoke regarding the motion: Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault 
Councilor S. Wilson, Chair Brayman and Councilor Watson. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance 
Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All 
Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of 
Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  
Councilor Perreault was opposed.  
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance, a memo from Manager Eldridge, relative pages from the 
CIP, a projected amortization schedule for the bonds, and a memo and PowerPoint 
presentation from the Assessor will be attached to the official minutes.)   
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
September 21, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith  
Town Clerk 
September 24, 2015 
 

October 5, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Word\Election\Forms\WARRANT 11-03-15.docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
Warrant for Municipal Election 

November 3, 2015 
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND, ss} 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK      } 
 
TO ELIN M. GOULD, RESIDENT OF THE TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, CUMBERLAND COUNTY, 
MAINE: 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED, in the name of the State of Maine, to notify and warn the voters of the Town 
of Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of the following: 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED, that on November 3, 2015, a Municipal Election will be held in the Town of 
Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 at the following voting place for all voters to vote for the offices 
indicated herein: 
 
Voting Place Name   Brunswick Junior High School      Voting Place Location    65 Columbia Ave 
   Polls Open at   7:00 A.M.  Polls Close at 8:00 P.M. 
 
Absentee Ballot Processing (check all that apply): 
 
Processed by:      Municipal Clerk (Centrally)       Warden (At polls)  
 
Date/Time of Processing (check all that apply): 
 

 Day Before Election Day (11/2/15) *(processing at Town Hall, 85 Union Street) 
 1-Hour Inspection Time Period: 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. 
 Time Processing Begins: 9:00 a.m. (or after time of inspection) to 5:00 p.m. 
 

 During Election Day (11/3/15) Processing Time(s):  2:00 p.m., 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. 
 
The following offices will be determined: 
 Councilor for Districts 3, 4 and At Large 
 School Board for Districts 3, 4, and At Large 

 
To vote on the proposed change to the Charter of the Brunswick Sewer District in the form of the following 
question: 

Question To Be Voted On: 
Do you favor changing the debt limit of the Brunswick Sewer District from 
$20,000,000 to $25,000,000? 

 
Dated at Brunswick this 5th day of October 2015 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________(Town Clerk) 



O:\Word\Election\Forms\WARRANT 11-03-15.docx 

 
 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
RETURN OF WARRANT 

 
County of Cumberland, ss} 
Town of Brunswick    } 
 
I certify that I have notified the voters of Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of the time and place of the Municipal 
Election and processing of absentee ballots by posting attested copies of the within warrant at the following locations, 
each being a public and conspicuous place within the indicated District: 
 
District 1 Mid Coast Hospital 
District 2 Parkview Medical Center 
District 3 Brunswick High School 
District 4 Sunshine Laundry 
District 5 Libby’s Market 
District 6 Little Dog Coffee Shop 
District 7 Warming's Market 
 
On ____________________, which is at least 7 days prior to Election Day.   
 (Date) 
 
Dated at Brunswick this _____ day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
Elin M. Gould, Resident of the Town of Brunswick 

 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



The Town of Brunswick is pleased to announce ReVision Energy of Portland, Maine as its 

partner installer for the 2015-2016 Solarize Brunswick program. Beginning immediately, the 

Town and ReVision will work to promote the program through a number of Launch Events, 

building on outreach already done by the Town. Between now and the end of 2015, ReVision 

will contact Brunswick residents, businesses, and organizations interested in solar to arrange 

site visits and draw up quotes, with installations planned for Q1/Q2 2016. 

 

The purpose of the Solarize Brunswick program is to help people get the best deal possible on 

solar energy systems through group purchasing. The more people who sign up for a solar 

energy project before December 31, 2015, the lower the cost of the project for everyone who 

participates. This model has proven successful in many other towns in northern New England 

where there is a strong level of local community involvement and people are willing to spread 

the word about the opportunity. Studies on solar adoption have proven time and again that the 

number one predictor of where a future solar energy system will occur is the proximity of an 

existing system--good neighbors helping other neighbors get in on the powerful benefits of 

renewable energy. 

 

Selection of winning bidder for Solarize Brunswick has followed a deliberative process set in 

motion by the The Town’s release of a Request for Proposal (RFP) in July 2015. In response to 

the RFP, the Town received four qualifying bids from area installers. At the same time, the 

Town appointed a Selection Committee to evaluate bids. Bids were evaluated based on four 

criteria highlighted in the RFP, and weighed in roughly equal measure: quality of the equipment 

and installation; support of the customer provided by the bidder before, during and following 

installation; value of the proposed bid to the customer, in particular the value of the tiered 

pricing mechanism; and commitment to outreach and promotional activities. 

 

All of the received bids were strong in one or more criteria. Multiple bids were strong across 

the board. But, only ReVision offered a proposal that was price-competitive, strong on features, 

and backed by a reputation for quality and service in the Brunswick area stretching back over a 

decade. Other factors were taken into account as well. The Town has been gathering names of 

interested residents and businesses, including tax exempt organizations, and has collected over 

240 so far. The size of ReVision’s operations -- distributed across northern New England, with 

689 systems installation installed in 2014 alone, 486 of which taking place in Maine and more 

than 50 of those in Brunswick -- inspire confidence that it can serve a successful Solarize 

Brunswick program in the planned timeframe. In addition, ReVision’s ability to arrange Power 

Purchase Agreements (PPAs) makes it particularly attractive for some of the large tax exempt 

organizations that have expressed interest in Solarize. Finally, ReVision’s commitment to 

Community Solar Farms (CSFs) make it attractive in Brunswick, where there has been strong 

interest from consumers for a CSF option. 



 

The Selection Committee considered all of the bids carefully, and considered more than one bid 

in its final round of deliberations. However, after rounds of Q&A and following interviews, it 

chose ReVision Energy unanimously and without qualification as the Town’s partner installer. 

The Town eagerly looks forward to working with ReVision to make Solarize Brunswick a success! 

 

Said Phil Coupe of ReVision, "All of us at ReVision Energy are grateful for this opportunity to 

partner with Town of Brunswick to help residents, businesses, non-profits and the town itself 

acquire robust, reliable solar energy systems at the lowest possible cost through the Solarize 

community purchasing program. Maine's strong solar resource is proven to deliver a solid 

economic and environmental return on a solar energy investment and we look forward to 

helping Brunswick reduce its long-term energy costs and the carbon pollution that results from 

burning oil, propane and natural gas." 

 

For more information, contact Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, Town of 

Brunswick, 85 Union Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011 / 207-721-0292 / 

lsmith@brunswickme.org. 
 

mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org


MANAGER’S REPORT –  
B through E 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
ITEM 97 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



















 
 

 
ITEM 98 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town’s	2016‐20	Capital	Improvement	Program	(CIP),	adopted	on	May	28,	2015,	recommends	
funding	the	replacement	of	boilers	and	related	equipment	at	Brunswick	High	School.		The	
replacement	was	scheduled	to	take	place	in	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year.		The	School	Department	is	
recommending	that	this	project	be	moved	to,	and	funded	in,	the	current	fiscal	year.		The	estimated	
cost	of	the	project	is	$575,000.		The	department	had	originally	planned	to	reconstruct	the	High	
School	track	in	this	year,	however	it	is	not	prepared	to	move	forward	on	that	project	at	this	time.	
	
Attached	please	find	the	following:	
	

 Relevant	pages	from	the	CIP	
 Memorandum	and	attachments	prepared	by	the	School	Department	explaining	the	project	
 A	bond	ordinance	authorizing	the	project	and	the	issuance	of	bonds	to	fund	it.	
 An	estimated	debt	service	scheduled	that	assumes	that	the	bonds	will	be	amortized	over	ten	

years.	
	
Paul	Perzanoski	will	be	in	attendance	at	the	September	8th	Council	meeting	to	explain	the	project	
and	answer	questions.		Should	the	Council	agree	to	authorize	the	project,	it	needs	to	set	a	public	
hearing	on	the	bond	ordinance.	



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Paul	Perzanoski	 	 	 Paul	A.	J.	Caron	
	 Superintendent	of	Schools	 	 Director	of	Facilities	&	Transportation	
	 Brunswick	School	Department		 Brunswick	School	Department		
	
DATE:	 August	28,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	
	
	
	
The	Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	project	has	been	in	the	Capital	Improvement	
Program	for	several	years.		This	project	is	to	replace	the	original	boiler	plant	equipment	with	three	
modern	energy‐efficient	boilers	designed	to	run	in	the	90%	efficiency	range.	The	current	system	is	a	
dual	fuel	boiler	which,	because	of	its	design	for	multiple	fuels,	cannot	operate	at	the	potential	
efficiency	of	today's	systems.			Because	of	its	inability	to	operate	efficiently,	one	of	the	boilers	is	kept	
off	for	most	of	the	year	and	this	causes	condensation	to	the	point	that	it	has	been	cited	for	several	
years	by	the	boiler	inspector.	He	fears	that	the	corrosion	will	ultimately	lead	to	failure	of	the	boiler.		
	
The	project	also	includes	the	replacement	of	the	domestic	hot	water	system	to	a	more	efficient	
system.	Currently,	due	to	the	configuration	of	the	heaters	and	the	large	size	of	the	tank,	far	too	much	
hot	water	is	being	heated	during	school	hours	and	especially	overnight	and	during	non‐school	days.	
																																														
The	BHS	Boiler	Replacement	project	was	originally	planned	for	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year,	and	the	Track	
project	was	expected	to	be	completed	in	the	2015‐16	fiscal	year.		As	the	Track	project	has	been	
delayed	for	further	study,	the	School	Board	has	decided	to	switch	the	projects	and	pursue	the	BHS	
Boiler	project	in	fiscal	year	2015‐16.	
	
Attached	is	a	proposal	from	Siemens	to	complete	the	project	for	a	cost	of	$575,000.	
	
In	the	CIP	the	BHS	Boiler	project	was	anticipated	to	be	funded	through	bonds.		We	request	that	the	
Town	Council	allow	this	project	to	go	forward	in	2015‐16,	and	approve	the	necessary	funding.		
	
	

























P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

T
O

T
A

L
F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

I.
  P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

C
ap

it
al

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts

F
ac

il
it

ie
s 

- 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

M
cL

el
la

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1,
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
17  

L
ib

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
U

pg
ra

de
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

E
m

er
so

n 
F

ir
e 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

oi
le

r 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f 
(p

ar
ti

al
)

16
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

B
JH

S
 A

ir
 Q

ua
li

ty
45

4,
08

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
19  

B
H

S
 B

oi
le

r 
P

la
nt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
- 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
1,

77
0,

08
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

   

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

21  
C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
li

gh
ts

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

li
gh

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
N

an
cy

/P
at

ri
ci

a/
P

ie
rc

e 
R

ec
on

st
r

58
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

A
nd

ro
sc

og
gi

n 
B

ik
e 

P
at

h 
D

es
ig

n
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
23  

P
in

e 
S

tr
ee

t a
cc

es
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s

25  
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

T
ot

al
 I

n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

62
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

16
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

C
ap

it
al

 A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s

27  
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
29  

P
&

R
 S

id
ew

al
k 

tr
ac

to
r/

sn
ow

bl
ow

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

31  
E

ng
in

e 
2 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
70

0,
50

0
   

   
   

   

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

33  
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
2,

44
5,

08
0

$ 
   

   
73

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
5,

53
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
94

6,
03

0
$ 

   
  

20
16

-2
0 

C
IP

P
ro

je
ct

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

P
ag

e 
2

P
ro

p
os

ed
: 

M
ar

ch
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

ea
ri

n
g:

  M
ay

 1
4,

 2
01

5 
A

d
op

te
d

: 
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY

FY  2016-2020

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT NO.
BHS Boiler plant replacement and upgrade
DEPARTMENT PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORITY

School Department School Facilities Manager
PROJECT LOCATION TIF (Y or N) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years)

Brunswick High School 25                
PROJECT DESCRIPTION    Describe the project and summarize why the project is necessary.  Address evaluation criteria.

PROJECT SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS   (estimates should cover entire cost of project)

SOURCES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

G.O. Bonds -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

     TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
USES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Turnkey installation, etc. -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
What is the source and date of your cost estimate?     (e.g. preliminary estimate -  6/30/13, design - 12/31/12, etc....)

This project goal is to replace the original boiler plant equipment with modern energy efficient designed to run in the 90% 
efficiency range. The current system is a dual fuel boiler which, because of it's design for multiple fuels, cannot operate at the 
potential efficiency of today's systems. I plan to install 3 boilers that will stage at minimal operating temperature (125 degree) 
for a single unit to all three boilers operating at maximum output. 

I also plan to replace the domestic hot water system so that we can operate that system more efficiently. Currently we heat far 
too much how water during school hours and even more during non-school days and times. These days with the use of low 
flow aerators and fixtures, we tend to pull hot water from the boiler, but with the minimal flow, we don't actually get the 
water. This is wasted energy being pulled but never actually used. 

Because of its inability to operate efficiently one of the boilers is kept off for most of the year and in doing so causes it to 
condensate to the point that it has been sited for several years by the boiler inspector. He fears that the corrosion will 
ultimately lead it to failure because of the corrosion. I do not want to get caught with insufficient heating during the winter 
thereby needing to respond by emergency mode and ending up with a system that will be less than thius efficiency.

Siemens Technology 8/13/2013, revised from 2012 for $527,000. (Added 3% for 2015-16)

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 19
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



CONSISTENCY WITH PLANS AND STUDIES
Describe how this project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR INTERAGENCY IMPACT
Explain how this project will impact other departments or agencies.  Do you know of any other project with which this

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each?

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS
Provide an estimate of the annual costs or savings that will result from this project over the next five (5) years.  Show savings as negative.

Type of Cost/(Savings) 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Direct energy savings 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

                                    TOTALS (net) 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
Explain the changes in the operating budgets     (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.)

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED     Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project.

 EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT     What is the effect if this project is not funded or funding is delayed?

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS     Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project.

Meets the needs of the Brunswick School Department as it grows to meet future educational demands

Minimal extra departmental interaction. Should or could be combined with other Major Capital Improvement Projects

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 20
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water 
System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other 
costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount 

not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized 
Hereunder  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 - 2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP recommends replacement of the Brunswick High School boiler, along with other 
improvements in the boiler room as identified in the project developed by the School Department, (the 
“Brunswick High School Boiler Project”) to be funded with general obligation debt; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the School Department, with its HVAC service contractor, has established a project budget 
of $575,000, all of which is expected to be financed with the issue of general obligation bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Charter”) requires that any capital 
acquisition to be financed solely or partly by the issuance of bonds or notes to be authorized by ordinance; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. 

 
Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A total of five hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus any additional 
amounts authorized under this ordinance, are appropriated to finance the cost of boiler 
replacement and upgrades, including acquisition and installation of boilers for heating 
and domestic hot water at Brunswick High School (the “Project”).   
 

b. The issue and sale of the Town’s general obligation bonds or notes (and notes in 
anticipation thereof) is authorized in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed five 
hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus the cost of issuance.  The proceeds 
of the bonds and notes are appropriated to finance the costs of the Project.  The bonds and 
notes may also be used to reimburse the Town for any prior expenditures on the Project, 
or to refinance notes or advances as authorized herein.   

 
Section 2.  Authorization for Project.  The Town Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, 

and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, agreements, and other documents 
and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or appropriate in connection with 
the Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions as 
may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town 
Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the authority 
granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 

Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 



 

 

 
a. the cost of planning, and engineering, and other professional services associated with the 

Project;  
b. the costs related to applying for and obtaining all permits and licenses, 
c. the cost of constructing the Project, and all costs determined by the Town Manager to be 

necessary to place the Project in service and ready for its intended use;  
d. the cost of insuring the Project while under construction and for a reasonable period upon 

substantial completion of the project, including builders risk, general liability, product 
liability, workers compensation and any other insurance costs the Town Manager 
determines is related to the Project; 

e. the costs of financing the Project including but not limited to financing charges and 
issuance costs, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees and costs, 
application fees, and other fees and expenses related to financing the Project;  

f. interest costs prior to and during construction and for a period not to exceed three years 
from the issue date of the bonds, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees 
and costs, application fees, and other fees and expenses related to the financing 
transaction;  

g. any other costs identified in the Project budget provided with the proposal, and the cost of 
any other items or services deemed to be cost under generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Town’s Finance Director. 
 

Section 4.  Details of the Bonds or Notes.   
 

a. Execution and Delivery of Bonds and Notes.  The bonds and notes issued hereunder, and 
any issued as the result of exchanges or transfers, shall be signed by the Treasurer and be 
countersigned by the Chair of the Town Council.  The bonds and notes shall have the seal 
of the Town affixed thereon, and be attested by the Town Clerk.  The Treasurer and Chair 
of the Town Council, from time to time, shall execute such bonds and notes as may be 
required to provide for exchanges or transfers of bonds and notes hereinbefore 
authorized.  
 

b. Book Entry Certificates  In lieu of physical certificates of the bonds and notes, the 
Treasurer be and hereby is authorized to undertake all acts necessary to provide for the 
issuance and transfer of such bonds and notes in book-entry form pursuant to the 
Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System.  As an alternative to the provisions 
herein regarding physical transfer of bonds, and the Treasurer is authorized and 
empowered to enter into a Letter of Representation or any other contract, agreement or 
understanding necessary or, in the Treasurer’s opinion, appropriate in order to qualify the 
bonds for and participate in the Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System. 

 
c. Tax Exempt Bonds Option.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to determine whether to issue the bonds and notes authorized 
herein as taxable bonds and notes or tax-exempt bonds and notes.  To the extent such 
bonds and notes are issued as tax-exempt bonds, the Treasurer and Chair of the Town 
Council are individually authorized to covenant and agree, on behalf of the Town and for 
the benefit of the holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required 
reports and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that interest on the 
bonds and notes will remain exempt from federal income taxation and that the Town will 
refrain from any action that would cause interest on the bonds and notes to be subject to 
federal income taxation. 



 

 

 
d. No Arbitrage Certification.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to covenant and certify on behalf of the Town that no part of the 
proceeds of the bonds and notes shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire any 
securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause such bonds or notes to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

 
e. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and empowered 

to take all such action as may be necessary to designate such bonds and/or notes as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code; it being the 
Town’s intention that the Treasurer, with advice of bond counsel, to make the required 
Section 265(b) election with respect to such bonds and notes, but only to the extent the 
election may be available and advisable as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
f. Principal Denominations.  The principal amount of the bonds of the same maturity shall 

be such minimum denomination as the Treasurer, in the Treasurer’s discretion, may 
approve. 

 
g. Maturities and Interest Rates.  The maturity(ies), interest rate(s) and sale price of the 

bonds or notes issued hereunder shall be either sent out to bid or negotiated by the 
Treasurer in such manner as the Treasurer deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Town and the financing of the above-referenced Project.  The Treasurer be and 
hereby is authorized to provide that any of the bonds or notes hereinbefore authorized 
may be made callable, with or without premium, prior to their stated dates of maturity.  
The bonds or notes hereby authorized shall be in such form and to otherwise contain such 
other terms and provisions as the Treasurer may approve, his or her approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by his/her execution thereof.   

 
h. Consolidation of Bond or Notes.  Any or all of the bonds or notes issued hereunder may 

be consolidated with and become a part of any other issue of bonds or notes authorized to 
be issued by any previous or subsequent ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 
Brunswick. 

 
i. Other Authorized Officials.  If the Treasurer, Chair of the Town Council or Town Clerk 

are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute the bonds hereinbefore authorized 
or any other documents necessary or convenient to the issuance, execution and delivery 
of the bonds, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as an 
assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 
and effect as if such official had performed such act. 

 
j. Absence of Officials Prior to Delivery.  If any of the officials of the Town who have 

signed or sealed the bonds or notes shall cease to be such officials before the bonds or 
notes signed and sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, 
such bonds and notes nevertheless may be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the 
same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed or sealed such bonds or 
notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; and also any such bonds and notes may 
be signed and sealed on behalf of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of 
the execution of such bonds and notes, shall be the proper officials of the Town, although 



 

 

at the nominal date of such bonds and notes any such person shall not have been such 
officer or official. 

 
Section 5.  Sale of Bonds or Notes and Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent 
 

a. Official Statement.  The Treasurer is authorized to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement for use in the offering and sale 
of the bonds or notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement shall be 
in such form and contain such information as may be approved by the Treasurer, with the 
advice of the underwriter for the bonds or notes and bond counsel for the Town.  The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in the name 
of and on behalf of the Town in connection with offering the bonds or notes is approved. 

 
b. Counsel.  The Treasurer is authorized to select Issuer Counsel, Bond Counsel and any 

other counsel the Treasurer deems necessary in connection with the planning, sale and 
issuance of the notes or bonds, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as 
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. 
 

c. Underwriter.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the underwriter for the bonds and 
notes, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as may be necessary or 
appropriate in connection therewith. 

 
d. Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the 

registrar, paying agent, and transfer agent for the bonds or notes and to execute and 
deliver such contracts and agreements as may be necessary or appropriate to secure their 
services.  The bonds and notes shall be transferable only on the registration books of the 
Town kept by the transfer agent.  Upon surrender of the bonds or notes with an 
accompanying written instrument of exchange or transfer, executed by the registered 
owner or the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the transfer 
agent, the Town and the transfer agent shall make a charge sufficient to cover any tax, fee 
or any other governmental charge required to be payable with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Subsequent to the first exchange or transfer, the cost of preparing new bonds or 
notes upon exchanges or transfer thereof shall be paid by the person requesting the same. 

 
Section 6.  Refunding.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby are 

authorized to execute a refunding of general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized when the 
Treasurer and the Chair of the Town Council determine that such refunding is in the best interest of the 
Town.  All delegated authority provided pursuant to this ordinance shall also apply to a refunding bond 
and note issue relating to the general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized. 

 
Section 7.  Continuing Disclosure.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby 

are individually authorized to covenant, certify, and agree, on behalf of the Town, for the benefit of the 
holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required reports, make any annual financial 
or material event disclosure, and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that the disclosure 
requirements imposed by Rule 15c12-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are met. 

 
Section 8.  Investment Earnings and Other Bond Proceeds.  Any investment earnings on the 

proceeds of the bonds and notes and any other unexpended proceeds thereof are appropriated for the 
following purposes: 

 



 

 

a. To any costs of the Project in excess of the amounts authorized herein; 
b. In accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of the Town’s Arbitrage and Use 

of Proceeds Certificate delivered in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes 
including, to the extent permitted thereunder, to interest on the bonds or notes, or to the 
Town's general fund; 

c. To any other qualified costs approved by the Town Council and not prohibited by the 
Town Charter or Ordinances, Maine law or the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Section 9.  Authority to Levy Tax for Debt Service.  In each of the years during which any of 

the bonds or notes are outstanding, there shall be levied a tax in an amount which, with other revenues, if 
any, available for that purpose, shall be sufficient to pay the interest on said bonds or notes, payable in 
such year, and the principal of such bonds maturing in such year. 

 
Section 10.  Authority to Accept Grants and Contributions.  The Town Manager is authorized 

to accept contributions and make applications for federal and state grant funds, said contributions and 
grants to be used in lieu of or in addition to bond proceeds authorized hereunder.  The Town Manager is 
authorized to accept contributions and grants on behalf of the Town and said amounts are hereby 
appropriated to fund any portion of the Project.  The total amount appropriated under this Ordinance shall 
not be greater than the amount of bond proceeds plus any contributions and grants, and plus any other 
amounts appropriated herein. 

Section 11.  Advances to Fund Project.  The Town is authorized to make advances, from the 
Town’s general fund to a capital projects fund, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $575,000 in 
anticipation of the issuance of bonds or notes, or for the purpose of financing any part of the Project.  
Advances used in lieu of bonds or notes authorized hereunder, are appropriated to finance the cost, or any 
part thereof, of the Project.  The Treasurer is authorized to establish and amend all details of any advances 
including, but not limited to the term, interest rates, and payment schedule.  The authority to issue the 
bonds and notes authorized herein shall remain and continue in full force and effect during the entire term 
of the advance(s).  The proceeds of the bonds and notes issued hereunder may be used to repay the 
advance(s) of any portion thereof. 

 
Section 12.  Declaration of Official Intent.  Advances from the Town’s general fund may 

finance the original expenditures related to the Project.  It is expected that those advances will be 
reimbursed in part or in whole by the issuance of bonds or notes authorized hereunder.  It is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Ordinance shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.  

 
Section 13.  Abandonment of Borrowing Authority.  The Treasurer is empowered to declare 

abandoned the authority to issue any bonds or notes the Treasurer deems to be in excess of the amount 
necessary to complete the Project.  Such a declaration once made may not be reversed other than by 
ordinance. 

 
 

Proposed to Town Council:   September 8, 2015 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council:  



ASSUMPTIONS: PROJECT NO: 4                              
Amount Financed: 575,000               Total Interest: 88,550                     
Number of Years: 10                        Total Cost: 663,550                   
Interest Rate: 2.80%
Start Bond Year: 31                        

BOND FISCAL TOTAL CUMMULATIVE
YEAR YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PAYMENTS BALANCE EQUITY

30           2015-16 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
31           2016-17 57,500.00            16,100.00            73,600.00            517,500.00          57,500.00                
32           2017-18 57,500.00            14,490.00            71,990.00            460,000.00          115,000.00              
33           2018-19 57,500.00            12,880.00            70,380.00            402,500.00          172,500.00              
34           2019-20 57,500.00            11,270.00            68,770.00            345,000.00          230,000.00              
35           2020-21 57,500.00            9,660.00              67,160.00            287,500.00          287,500.00              
36           2021-22 57,500.00            8,050.00              65,550.00            230,000.00          345,000.00              
37           2022-23 57,500.00            6,440.00              63,940.00            172,500.00          402,500.00              
38           2023-24 57,500.00            4,830.00              62,330.00            115,000.00          460,000.00              
39           2024-25 57,500.00            3,220.00              60,720.00            57,500.00            517,500.00              
40           2025-26 57,500.00            1,610.00              59,110.00            -                       575,000.00              
41           2026-27 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
42           2027-28 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
43           2028-29 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
44           2029-30 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
45           2030-31 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
46           2031-32 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
47           2032-33 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
48           2033-34 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
49           2034-35 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
50           2035-36 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
51           2036-37 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
52           2037-38 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
53           2038-39 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
54           2039-40 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
55           2040-41 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
56           2041-42 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
57           2042-43 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
58           2043-44 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
59           2044-45 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
60           2045-46 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           

TOTAL 575,000.00          88,550.00            663,550.00          

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
Bond Amortization Schedule

BHS Boiler Plant Replacement

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\CIP 2016\2017-21 CIP4 Page 1



10/5/2015

1

Public Hearing

BHS Boiler Plant Project

Annual Boiler Inspection Report as required and 
conducted by our insurance carrier. This is what 
prompted me to add it to the C.I.P.



10/5/2015

2

Post Inspection response

• Discussed this issue with staff and I was told that it has been ongoing for 
some time.

• Called Siemens to review and assess.

• This is the back up boiler and when the water cools it condensates. It is 
only used during peak cold days. Not large enough to operate on it’s own. 

• Because of the boiler plant design it would need to stay fired year round 
for it to keep from condensing on the shell. 

• Decided that, given the age of the boiler & domestic plant, we should look 
at an equipment replacement project that would be more efficient.

My Facilities Strategic Plan Points



10/5/2015

3

Maintenance & Capital Asset plan

• There is a large concern about the surprise repair/replacement costs 
of the town and school assets.

• Proactive VS reactive

• Is it a surprise or is it because of the ongoing back log of projects?

• When projects get pushed back the assets in question can’t begin to 
get looked at because repeat requests are still in the queue

3 pronged approach

• Annual repair/maintenance/savings budget should equal 2% of 
combined building  replacement costs, $38,000,000.00 = $760,000.00

1. Invest of save $500,000 per year for renewals and repairs for BHS & 
HBS

2. Invest $1,000,000 per year in upgrading the BJHS and Coffin Schools

3. Budget for a $1,000,000.00 nest egg so that we better prepared to 
address the future needs of building a new school. 
• In doing so we are doing our part to be responsible and understanding of the 
town’s tax burden. 

• Keeping our fingers crossed for a new school in 2025 is not an acceptable 
approach for a business plan. We need to have a plan.



10/5/2015

4

The Kawanee boiler is the back up boiler that 
has corroded.

Boiler Plant replacement

• With the problems that we have with the Kewanee boiler we feel that 
we should be prepared to replace the entire boiler plant. If one boiler 
is nearing it’s useful life the rest of the equipment might be as well.

• The next slides show the primary Boiler (Smith) the domestic boiler as 
well as the large domestic storage tank.

• This project also includes a new main electrical panel that will b 
connected to the generator. Currently the boiler won’t operate during 
a power failure.

• This is also a designated Red Cross shelter.



10/5/2015

5

Smith Boiler – Domestic boiler & tank

500 
gallon 
storage 
tank



10/5/2015

6

Cost Scenario 1 as proposed

• Upgrade boiler plant cost $575,000

• Efficiency Maine rebate ($7,500 x 3 =$22,500)

• Initial cost w/o interest = $552,500

• Savings per year = $22,000

• R.O.I. = $552,500 / $22,000 = 25.11 years

Cost Scenario 2 ‐ Replace single boiler and 
remaining equipment at time of failure with the 
same type and potentially the same problems.

• We won’t be able to do a boiler plant equipment replacement during bad 
weather.

• The problem usually manifests itself during bad weather because that is 
when boiler pressure is high.

• Boilers leak from the inside out so we don’t know how much time we have.

• $22,000 savings not achieved over a 25 year period
• 25 years x $22,000 = $550,000 of potential savings lost
• This just the scenario of losing the single boiler, over the 25 year term there 
is the additional cost of replacing everything else.



10/5/2015

7

Questions forwarded to me

• Energy Efficiency 

• Timeline

• Details of Project Cost

• Sole Source 
• Reasons why

• Other projects

• Project guarantee

• The consequences of an unexpected failure of the existing plant

Efficiencies

• The Importance of Modulation
• In general, modulation refers to the ability to adjust a boiler's or water 
heater's firing rate (input) to meet the heating demand (output) of the 
system.

AERCO equipment utilizes a fully modulating design that precisely matches 
firing rate to actual building demand. A 2 million BTU/hr. capacity Benchmark 
boiler can run with as little as 100,000 BTU/hr., or 6.7%, input. Drawing only 
enough fuel to meet actual load changes, each unit will gradually increase its 
capacity – in precise 1% increments – up to 100% capacity.

• Smarter production and storage of domestic hot water.



10/5/2015

8

Where Conventional Equipment Falls Short

• The oldest boiler designs have only one level of power – 100%. 
They are either on or off. This creates cycling losses each time the unit 
shuts down; the heat exchanger cools off and must be fully 
"reheated" before heat transfer can begin.

• Once the unit restarts, the 100% firing rate may be far more than 
what is required to meet the building's load.

While newer burners and boiler designs incorporate 5:1 or 3:1 
turndown ratios, limited firing rates still result in some wasteful 
overshooting or cycling losses

Condensing Boiler Benefits

• The Greenspec® Listed Benchmark boilers are perfect for “green” designs. Their small footprint, 
flexible venting/piping options, high efficiency, and lower operating costs can help facilities earn 
LEED points. Benchmark has been designed with environmental advantages:

• O2monitoring system – Benchmark units are available with AERCO’s proprietary O2 monitoring 
system, which displays the oxygen level directly on the C‐More controller in real time. It can be 
monitored via Modbus, so customers can measure emission levels and fuel combustion efficiency 
to maximize fuel economy.

• Space‐saving Design
All Benchmark products are delivered as a single, fully assembled unit. Its small footprint, 
doorway size, and quiet operation make it ideal for both new construction and retrofit 
applications.



10/5/2015

9

Details of Project Cost

Discipline Vendor Cost Vendor Cost

Sheet Metal AirTemp 23,150$     Aerco 97,870$       

Electrical Bana Corp 23,768$     Muchkin 9,450$         

Insulation Atlantic 7,210$        F.W.Webb 23,079$       

Engineering Bennett Eng 12,875$     Controls 30,701$        

Rigging Cote Crane 24,720$     Misc 3,515$         

Piping S & M 135,369$   Freight 5% 6,286$         

Roofing G&E 4,000$        

GC Lajoie 7,003$        

Total 238,095$   170,901$     

Labor Costs Equipment Costs

Project Cost Breakout

Direct Costs - equipment $170,901

Direct Costs - Subs - turnkey Install  $238,095

Total Direct Cost $408,996

Marked-up Internal Labor Costs $43,932

Marked up  Material $197,391

Marked up  Subs $275,000

Total of marked up cots $516,323

Total Other Indirect Costs $58,576

Total  Sell price 574,899$     



10/5/2015

10

Project Cost Mark‐Ups
Project Cost Mark-Ups

Major Mechanical/HVAC Systems

Energy Engineering 0.50%

Engineering, Design and Spec 0.00%

Project Management 4.00%

On-site Construction Management 2.00%

Commissioning 2.00%

Training 0.80%

M&V During Construction 0.00%

Cost of Risk 7.00%

P&P Bonds 1.00%

Construction interest 0.50%

Travel 0.60%

Site Conditions 1.80%

Hazardous Waste 0.00%

Other -Warranty 1.50%

TOTAL 21.70%

Overhead 10.00%

Profit 5.00%

Sole Source

• Siemens knows our buildings and they have several years of energy 
data.

• They understand our needs

• Keeps all of our energy saving software consistent

• They are our contracted PM and repair company. We don’t want one 
company to do the building and another to warranty service the 
boiler plant.

• Other project similar to this follow;



10/5/2015

11

Siemens Controls

• We spend $1,600 per person to train people to use Siemens energy 
management controls. 

• Other vendors such as Honeywell systems doesn’t even offer training 
to staff. I am the only one that can manage the HBS controls. 

• Savings would be greater if someone on sight were able to do it.

IAQ project for the McMahon School Phase 1 ‐
May 8, 2008 
• Proposal: Phase I IAQ project of converting the McMahon 
school from Steam to hot water heat source and converting exiting 
class room unit ventilators to VAV boxes with reheat coils served by a 
total of (4) roof mounted Heat Recovery Ventilators.  All new IAQ 
equipment to be complete with Siemens DDC. Siemens will bring all 
communications of associated equipment back to the Siemens Apogee 
system. Complete breakdown of Phase I to be attached on following 
pages. 

• Project Cost: $490,490.00



10/5/2015

12

IAQ project for the McMahon School Phase 2 
– May 2, 2009
• Proposal: Phase II and final conversion of the McMahon steam to hot 
water conversion. This project includes the remaining portion of the 
school under steam heat, including the complete boiler room 
conversion with Siemens Automation.

• Project Cost: $1,243,286.00

IAQ project for the Montello School, phase I, 
II, & Boiler room – February 6, 2009
• Proposal:         Phase I, II IAQ project of converting the Montello School 
from steam to hot water is to focus on the large areas first, including 
the Boiler room as its own phase with complete retrofit, cafeteria, 
gym, “old” band room, class rooms or old lockers, kitchen, 
administration, Wing B & C of class rooms, hall ways, and library .  

• Project Cost:  Boiler Room Phase $     549,000.00

• Phase 1 HVAC $ 1,372,508.00

• Phase 2 HVAC  $1,361,403.00



10/5/2015

13

IAQ project for the Lewiston Middle School, 
Phase I – November 11, 2010
• Proposal:      Phase I at the Lewiston Middle school will be 
focusing on the control of the existing Heating Plant and Auditorium 
ventilation system. This proposal includes all new perimeter hot water            
conversion from steam in the entire auditorium.

• Project Cost: $ 459,271.00

Project Timeline

Beginning of November  Contracts are issued

Middle of November Removal of Kewanee starts

Middle of December  Removal of Kewanee Complete 

Beginning of January Major Equipment Arrives

Middle of January   Start Aerco Boiler installation

Middle of February  Aerco Boiler one installed

Beginning of March  System operational on existing 28 and one Aerco

Beginning of April   Three Aerco boilers installed

Middle of April  All Aerco boilers operational

Middle of April  Removal of existing 28 starts

Beginning of May  Install DHW boiler and seasonal tank 

Middle of May   Start DHW system and remove existing 19 series

Beginning of June  Substantial Completion

 



10/5/2015

14

Project Timeline

This is contingent upon proposal acceptance. I would assume if all good 
mid November for order.

• Process project internally

• Order Long lead time materials within a week of project acceptance.

• AERCO Boilers – Lead time 6‐8 weeks

• Domestic HW Boiler – Lead time 4 weeks

• Domestic Storage TANK – Lead time 4 weeks

Week of November 16th

• Conduct onsite meeting with all sub contractors for project Kickoff 
and create mobilization schedule from that onsite meeting.

• Start the DEMO process of the Kewanee Boiler



10/5/2015

15

Week of November 23rd

• Pour Concrete Pads for new Boiler locations

• Prep for Electrical Feed for new Boilers

• Prep venting for new Boilers

• Prep Piping for new Boilers.

• The Project Manager will provide weekly recap minutes for the next 
steps in the process. The intent would be to get one AERCO boiler up 
and running to allow usage to compensate for the building load while 
utilizing the sectional boiler.

What guarantee do we have for the life and 
performance?
• When you buy a new car you usually get a 3 year warranty with a mileage 
statement. 

• Don’t we expect the car to last more than 3 years?

• Who will want to service our out of warranty concerns after it expires?
• The company that you have an ongoing relationship with?

• The company that low balled the price to get the job.

• Will they nickel and dime us every chance? Siemens knows upfront that I 
will not accept change orders. Even if it is out of their control, they work 
with us to get it right.

• Who will respond for after hours calls? Low bid or vested contractor?



10/5/2015

16

Equipment Warranty

• Warranty – AERCO stands behind its products. The heat exchanger in 
the Benchmark boilers has a 10‐year full (non‐prorated) warranty

Unexpected failure

• What will the unexpected failures cost us?
• More money since we will need to rent temporary heating equipment

• We would end up paying higher labor since we would need to pay top dollar 
for reactive service.

• We would most likely sacrifice efficiency since we would need to utilize what 
ever is available.

• The need to enact the school emergency plan?



10/5/2015

17

Failed Boiler History

• Reactive replacement scenario
• A previous experience elsewhere ‐ I had concerns that the administrative 
office boiler would fail. 

• My initial proposal was denied – 1 steam boiler replaced with 2 hot water 
boilers (2/3 & 1/3) and a complete HVAC system

• Emergency plan 2 years later (value engineered)
• Had to eliminate the 2nd boiler – shoulder season and redundancy

• Cut back on HVAC system (4 pipe to 2 pipe)
• Lost efficiency, seasonal transfer is manual

• Hot days in the fall or cold days during the summer are a problem

• Went to spiral duct mains

Legal Opinion from Drummond/Woodsum

• Having reviewed the information you have provided, it is our 
observation that relatively little work is being done to repair or 
renovate the school building itself, and almost all the job appears to 
involve the cost of removing existing equipment, the cost of the new 
equipment, and the cost of installing the new equipment. While 
there is some work on the actual building, this appears to be 
incidental only, and minor relative to the total cost. Based on this 
understanding, it is our view that the job may be considered the 
replacement of building equipment and that competitive bidding 
under 5 MRSA §1743‐A is not required.



 
 

 
ITEM 99 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 100 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Perreault,	Chair	
	 Kathy	Wilson	
	 Daniel	Harris	
	
DATE:	 September	22,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Social	Service	Committee	
	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	is	pleased	to	present	for	the	Town	Council’s	consideration,	the	
attached	draft	of	a	social	service	agency	funding	policy	and	a	draft	application	form.		The	Committee	
began	its	work	in	mid‐July	and	completed	it	on	September	22nd.		Our	work	included	the	review	of	a	
number	of	policies	and	applications	utilized	by	several	communities	throughout	the	state.		We	also	
reviewed	Brunswick’s	previous	applications	and	funding	history.		As	has	been	reported,	Brunswick	
discontinued	making	grants	to	social	service	agencies	beginning	with	the	2007‐08	municipal	
budget.	
	
In	developing	this	policy,	the	Committee	chose	to	recommend	limiting	grant	funds	to	agencies	that	
provide	food,	clothing,	and	shelter.		Further	the	Committee	recommends	that	in	the	year	the	policy	
is	implemented,	funding	be	limited,	in	total,	to	$20,000.		The	Committee	understands	this	will	
provide	a	limited	amount	of	funds	to	a	limited	number	of	agencies.		Given	the	difficult	budgets	the	
Town	has	experienced,	and	expects	to	experience	in	the	foreseeable	future,	the	Committee	believes	
this	modest	approach	is	a	prudent	first	step.	
	
The	Committee	wishes	to	thank	Fran	Smith	for	her	assistance.		We	look	forward	to	discussing	our	
recommendations	with	the	Town	Council.	



 

	 	
	 Page	1	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

Town	of	Brunswick	
Social	Services	Funding	Policy	

	
	
Purpose	of	this	Policy	
	
The	purpose	of	this	policy	is	to	establish	guidelines	to	be	used	by	the	Town	Council	in	the	review	of	
grant	funding	requests	from	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations.	
	
Background		
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	provides	many	services	to	its	inhabitants	in	the	course	of	fulfilling	its	
responsibilities	as	a	municipality.		Certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations	provide	
services	to	members	of	the	public,	some	of	which	are	similar	to	the	services	that	the	Town	of	
Brunswick	could	provide	in	accordance	with	Maine	law.		The	Town	of	Brunswick,	acting	through	
the	Brunswick	Town	Council,	establishes	the	following	policy	under	which	the	Town	might	provide	
funds	to	certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations:	
	
Social	Services	Committee	
	

Committee	Composition:		The	committee	shall	consist	of	five	(5)	members.		Three	(3)	shall	be	
Town	Councilors,	appointed	for	annual	terms.		Two	shall	be	(2)	citizen	members	appointed	to	
two‐year	staggered	terms.	
	
Committee	Responsibilities:		The	committee	has	the	following	responsibilities:	
	
 administer	this	policy	and	make	recommendations	regarding	amendments	to	the	policy;	
 develop	and	administer	any	procedures	consistent	with	this	policy	as	necessary	to	meet	

the	goals	of	this	policy;	
 receive	and	review	funding	requests	made	pursuant	to	this	policy;	
 recommend	grant	amounts	to	be	awarded	to	eligible	organizations.	

	
Definitions	
	

Charitable	Organization:		A	non‐government,	non‐profit	organization,	determined	to	be	tax‐
exempt	by	the	Internal	Revenue	Service	under	section	501	(c)(3)	of	the	United	States	Internal	
Revenue	Code,	that	provides	goods	and	services	at	low	cost	or	no	cost	to	Recipients	(as	defined	
herein).	
	
Distributions:	Goods	and	services	which	a	Charitable	Organization	provides	to	Recipients.	
	
Recipient:	A	natural	person	who	receives	goods	and	services	from	a	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Year:	A	Charitable	Organization’s	fiscal	year.	
	

Eligibility	
	
To	apply	for	and	receive	funding	from	the	Town,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	meet	the	definition	
as	defined	herein	and	must	at	all	times	be	qualified	as	a	501(c)(3)	organization	under	the	United	



 

	 	
	 Page	2	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

States	Internal	Revenue	Code,	and	must	provide	the	Town	with	proof	of	such	qualification	with	
each	application	to	the	Town	for	grant	funds.		Loss	of	eligibility	will	render	an	applicant	ineligible	
for	funding	and	from	receiving	grant	award	payments.	
	
Further,	in	order	to	apply	for	and	receive	funding,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	demonstrate	to	
the	satisfaction	of	the	Social	Services	Committee	that	in	each	Year:	
	

 Distributions	made	by	the	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	in	the	form	of	food,	clothing,	
shelter,	or	a	combination	thereof.		

	
 At	least	seventy‐five	percent	(75%)	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	Recipients	shall	be	

residents	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick.	
	

 At	least	seventy‐five	percent	(75%)	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	budget	shall	be	
comprised	of	Distributions	to	Recipients.	

	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	be	controlled	by	or	otherwise	affiliated	with	any	religious	
organization.		However,	having	an	office	in	facilities	owned	or	occupied	by	a	religious	organization	
shall	not,	in	and	of	itself,	be	disqualifying.	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	discriminate	in	any	way	either	for	or	against	any	Recipient	due	
to	the	race,	creed,	color,	gender,	national	origin,	or	sexual	orientation	of	that	Recipient.		
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	make	all	determinations	regarding	an	applicant’s	eligibility	to	
and	the	Committee’s	determination	shall	be	final.	
	
Applications	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	must	submit	a	timely	application	deemed	complete	by	the	Social	Services	
Committee.		A	complete	application	shall	include	the	prescribed	form	of	application	as	well	as	all	
additional	submissions	required	by	this	policy.		The	application	must	be	certified	by	the	Charitable	
Organization’s	chief	executive	to	be	true	and	complete.		Further,	the	applicant	statement	shall	
include	an	agreement	to	fully	indemnify	and	defend	the	Town	against	any	liability	that	might	arise	
out	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	activities.		The	application	shall	be	accompanied	by	the	
Charitable	Organization’s:	
	

 Articles	of	Incorporation	
 By‐Laws	
 List	of	Board	Member	and	Officers	
 Audited	Financial	Statements	(most	recent	3	years)	
 Federal	Income	Tax	Returns	(most	recent	three	years)	
 An	Annual	Budget	
 Property	Tax	Exemption	Certification	(if	applicable)	
 Certificate	of	Insurance	(general	liability	minimum	of	$1,000,000)	

	
All	applications	for	funding	must	be	received	by	the	Town	by	the	date	prescribed	by	this	policy	and	
deemed	to	be	complete	the	Social	Services	Committee.		Late	or	incomplete	applications	will	not	be	



 

	 	
	 Page	3	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

considered	and	the	applicant	will	be	deemed	ineligible	for	funding.		The	Social	Services	Committee’s	
determination	of	an	application’s	completeness	shall	be	final.	
	
Applicants	should	be	aware	that	documents	submitted	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick	shall	be	deemed	
public	documents	under	Maine’s	Freedom	of	Access	Act	and	shall	be	available	for	public	inspection	
and	copying.		It	shall	not	submit	any	materials	that	could	identify,	or	lead	to	the	identification	of,	
any	individual	that	applied	for	or	received	assistance	from	the	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Awards	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	recommend	the	total	amount	of	grant	funding	to	be	included	in	
the	Town’s	annual	budget	and	make	funding	level	recommendations	for	each	applicant,	including	
any	recommendation	that	an	organization	not	be	funded.		These	recommendations	shall	not	
prevent	individual	Councilors	from	making	his	or	her	own	recommendations	during	budget	
deliberations.		However,	the	Council	will	not	entertain	funding	proposals	from	Charitable	
Organizations	that	did	not	submit	a	complete	and	timely	application	under	this	policy.	
Grant	awards	to	a	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	determined	in	the	deliberation	and	approval	of	
the	Town’s	annual	budget.		The	amount	of	funds,	if	any,	to	be	disbursed	shall	be	at	the	sole	
discretion	of	the	Town	Council.	
	
The	Town	Council	shall	not	be	obligated	to	disburse	all	funds	made	available	in	the	adopted	budget.	
The	Town	Council	may,	at	any	time,	in	the	sole	exercise	of	its	discretion,	remove	in	whole	or	in	part	
funds	that	may	have	been	previously	approved	as	to	any	Charitable	Organization.		Funding	may	be	
withdrawn	due	to	budgetary	constraints,	failure	to	maintain	eligibility,	or	for	any	other	reason	the	
Town	Council	deems	appropriate.	
	
Grant	payments	to	Charitable	Organizations	shall	be	made	in	two	equal	semi‐annual	payments.	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	may	suspend	funding,	including	any	unexpended	commitments,	to	any	
Charitable	Organization	that	loses	its	eligibility	under	this	policy.		Further,	the	Town	may,	at	its	
discretion,	seek	to	recover	funds	granted	to	an	organization	deemed	ineligible.	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee,	in	determining	its	level	of	recommended	support	for	a	Charitable	
Organization,	shall	consider	the	value	of	all	property	tax	exemptions	the	Town	has	granted	to	that	
organization.	
	
Calendar	
	
Activity	 Date
	
Appointment	of	Social	Services	Committee July	or	August
Social	Services		Committee	Consults	Town	Manager	on	Funding	(in	total) November
Social	Services	Committee	Recommended	Funding	Levels	(in	total) December	
Application	Period	Opens	 January	1
Application	Period	Closes	 January	31
Social	Services	Committee	Reviews	Applications February
Social	Services	Committee	Recommendation	to	Town	Council March	1
	

	



 

	 	
	 Page	4	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

Prior	to,	or	at,	the	Town	Council’s	first	meeting	in	December,	the	Social	Services	Committee,	after	
consultation	with	the	Town	Manager,	shall	recommend	to	the	Town	Council	the	aggregate	amount	
of	all	funds	available	for	disbursement	to	all	Charitable	Organizations	in	the	upcoming	fiscal	year	of	
the	Town.		During	the	first	year	following	the	adoption	of	this	policy,	the	total	amount	to	be	
distributed	shall	not	exceed	$20,000.	



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
FY 2016-17 

SOCIAL SERVICE FUNDING REQUEST 
 

APPLICATION 
 
Please address the following areas as completely as possible to ensure the Town Council will 
have all the data necessary to evaluate your request for funds.  Please be advised that the Town’s 
fiscal year runs 7/01/16 through 6/30/17. 
 
 
AGENCY: 
 
Agency Name: ___________________________________________  
 
Contact Name: ___________________________________________  
 
Address:  ___________________________________________  
 
Address:  ___________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:  ___________________________________________ 
 
E-Mail:  ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Is the Agency a 501 (c)(3) under the Internal Revenue Code?   Yes______  No ______ 
 
 
CLIENTELE: 
 
Geographic Area Served:    _________________________________  
 
Total Number Clients Served:   _________________________________  
 
Total Clients Served from Brunswick:  _________________________________ 
 
Ratio (%) Brunswick Client to Total:  _________________________________  
 
Client Eligibility Criteria:    _________________________________  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Date Established:  _________________ 
 



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

Statement of Purpose: 
 
 
 
 
Services/Program (Mandated? Voluntary?): 
 
 
Percentage of Distributions in the form of:  
 
Food:_______  Clothing:_______  Shelter: _______  Other: ________  TOTAL::  ________ 
 
 
Geographic Area Served ((Mandated? Voluntary?): 
 
 
 
Staff (Full time Equivalent (FTE), Full-time, Part-time, Volunteers): 
 
 
 
Relationship to Other Agencies: 
 
 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION 
 

 
Funds Requested from Brunswick last year:   ____________________ 
 
Current Total Annual Budget:      ____________________ 
 
Funds Granted by Brunswick FY (last year):    ____________________ 
 
Funds Requested from Brunswick FY (last year):   ____________________ 
 
Current FY Budget Compared to Previous Year (=/-%): ____________________ 
 
Ratio of Adm. Costs to Total Budget (%):    ____________________ 
 
Total Expenses for Brunswick Clients Last FY:    ____________________ 
 
% Expenses for Brunswick Clients Last FY:    ____________________ 
 
Expenses per Brunswick Client Last FY:    ____________________ 
  



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

AGENCY BUDGET 
 

 
 
 

At least seventy-five percent (75%) of the budgeted uses 
shall be in the form of distributions to recipients. 

 
 
  

Source of Funds Last Year Current Year % of Total

Federal 

State

County

Municpal (all)

Gifts

Self Generated

Investment Earnings

Other

Total Sources

Use of Funds Last Year Current Year % of Total

Distribution to Clients

Other Distributions

Administrative

Overhead

Other

Total Uses

Fund Balance Beginning

Fund Balance Ending



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

Other Information: 
 
Provide any other information that will help explain and justify your request: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agency Certification: 
 
On behalf of the applicant, I certify the information contained herein to be true and complete.  
Further, if awarded funding, the applicant agrees to fully indemnify and defend the Town against 
any liability that might arise out of the applicant’s activities. 
 
Name:   ________________________________________ 
 
Title:   ________________________________________ 
 
Signature:  ________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Please attach the following documents: 
 

 Articles of Incorporation 
 By-Laws 
 List of Board Member and Officers 
 Audited Financial Statements (most recent 3 years) 
 Federal Income Tax Returns (most recent three years) 
 An Annual Budget 
 Property Tax Exemption Certification (if applicable) 
 Certificate of Insurance (general liability minimum of $1,000,000) 

 
 

***  An Application is NOT complete without these attachments  *** 



 

 

 
Draft 

Social Services Policy Task Force 
(Council Subcommittee) 

Meeting – September 22, 2015 
6:00 P.M. 

Room 117 – Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Minutes 

 
Present: Committee members: Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, and Councilor K. 

Wilson 
Staff:  John Eldridge, Town Manager, and Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Others:  Councilor Watson 

 
 
Item 1 – Discussion of Draft Policy 
 
The Town Manager presented a revised draft policy.  The committee and staff discussed the draft.   
 
 
The Committee made changes to the draft language and made a motion to approve it as amendment.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by Fran Smith. 



 
 

 
ITEM 101 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Council\Memos	to	Council\2015\Memo	MRRA	Funding	093015.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	30,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Midcoast	Regional	Redevelopment	Authority	(MRRA)	
	 Tax	Increment	Financing	(TIF)	Request	
	
	
	
To	assist	the	Midcoast	Regional	Redevelopment	Authority	(MRRA)	with	the	redevelopment	of	the	
former	naval	air	station,	the	Town	of	Brunswick	adopted	two	tax	increment	financing	(TIF)	
districts.		The	development	programs	adopted	to	implement	those	districts	call	for	the	Town	to	
share	up	to	fifty	percent	(50%)	of	the	incremental	tax	revenues	generated	by	Brunswick	Landing	
and	the	Brunswick	Executive	Airport	districts	with	MRRA.		The	development	programs	require	the	
Town	to	approve	MRRA’s	request	for	the	use	of	the	TIF	funds.		The	TIFs	have	been	in	place,	and	the	
Town	has	been	capturing	TIF	revenues	from	those	districts,	since	2013.			
	
MRRA	has	requested	funds	to	assist	with	its	infrastructure	projects.		The	Town	has	been	reluctant	
to	make	an	allocation	to	MRRA	while	the	issue	of	the	aeronautical	tax	exemption	is	still	in	dispute.		
That	dispute	is	the	subject	of	MRRA’s	declaratory	judgement	lawsuit	pending	in	Superior	Court.		As	
the	Council	knows,	the	MRRA	and	the	town	have	been	engaged	in	negotiations	in	an	attempt	to	
reach	a	settlement	of	that	case.	
	
In	April,	MRRA	met	with	the	Town’s	TIF	Committee	to	request	that	funds	be	released	for	MRRA’s	
use.		MRRA	indicated	that	it	would	use	the	funds	for	infrastructure	improvements,	most	likely	
upgrades	to	the	sanitary	sewer	collection	system.		The	TIF	committee	indicated	that	it	would	be	
willing	to	consider	releasing	a	portion	of	the	TIF	funds,	while	retaining	a	significant	portion	of	the	
funds,	pending	resolution	of	the	tax	exemption	dispute.	
	
On	September	22nd,	the	TIF	Committee	met	and	agreed	to	recommend	that	the	Town	provide	
$200,000	of	TIF	funds	to	MRRA	for	its	sewer	collection	upgrade	project.		The	minutes	of	the	
Committee’s	meeting	are	attached.		Also	attached	is	a	Council	Resolution,	authorizing	the	release	of	
those	funds	to	MRRA.	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	



 

O:\Orders\MRRA Appropriation Resolution.docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation and Grant of up to $200,000 from Available Tax 

Increment Financing Proceeds to the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 
 
WHEREAS, the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”) is a public municipal 
corporation created by the Maine legislature for the purpose of assisting with the successful 
redevelopment of the properties located within the boundaries of the former Brunswick Naval Air Station 
(“BNAS”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Town of Brunswick designated two tax increment financing (“TIF”) districts to assist 
with the redevelopment of BNAS:  (1) the 146-acre Brunswick Executive Airport II Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “Executive Airport District”); and (2) the 542-
acre Brunswick Landing II Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the 
“Brunswick Landing District”) (and collectively the “TIF Districts”), in March 2013, and the State of 
Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) issued conditional approval of 
the TIF Districts on March 29, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town adopted a Development Program for both TIF Districts in July 2013, and DECD 
granted full approval of the two TIF Districts and the Development Programs for both TIF Districts on 
October 24, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Development Programs require that MRRA request, and the Town approve, TIF 
funding for projects and other uses MRRA wishes to fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, MRRA appealed the Town of Brunswick Assessor’s determination that certain MRRA 
properties are not exempt from property taxation; and  
 
WHEREAS, MRRA filed a civil action against the Town now pending in the Cumberland County 
Superior Court, Docket NO. CV-2014-201 (“pending action”); and 
 
WHEREAS, because of the lawsuit there has been uncertainty as to the amount of funds that might be 
made available to MRRA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town and MRRA have been in negotiations to resolve the pending litigation; and 
 
WHEREAS, MRRA has requested that some funds be made available to it prior to the resolution of the 
pending litigation; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council established a committee (“TIF Committee”) to review MRRA’s TIF 
funding requests; and  
 
WHEREAS, the TIF Committee met on April 7th and September 22nd to consider MRRA’s request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TIF Committee is recommending a total of $200,000 be made available to MRRA to be 
used towards public infrastructure projects; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the sum of $200,000 is appropriated and granted to 
MRRA for use in MRRA’s public infrastructure projects. 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 5, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council: 



Draft 
TIF COMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes 
September 22, 2015 

7:40 P.M. 
Conference Room 117 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Members Present: W. David Watson, John M. Perreault, and Daniel E. Harris 
  
Others Present: Councilor Kathy Wilson, Town Manager John Eldridge and Allison 

Harris 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to approve $200,000 for 
infrastructure improvements by MRRA.  The motion carried with three (3) yeas. 
 
Councilor Harris moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with three (3) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
  
 
 
  
 

  
Date of Approval 

 
___________________________ 

 Chair 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 102 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Council\Memos	to	Council\2015\Memo	Budget	Amendment	100115.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 October	1,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Proposed	Budget	Amendment		
	 Vehicle	and	Equipment	Replacement	Reserves	
	
	
Attached	is	a	proposed	resolution	that	would	amend	the	adopted	2015‐16	budget	to	add	funding	to	
the	Town’s	Vehicle	and	Equipment	Replacement	Reserves.	
	
As	you	may	recall,	the	Maine	Public	Employees	Retirement	System	(MainePERS),	recently	returned	
approximately	$136,481	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick.		This	refund	represented	the	remaining	surplus	
the	Town	carried	into	the	consolidated	participating	local	district	(PLD)	plan	when	the	Town	
elected	a	PLD	plan	in	1993.		Prior	to	joining	the	PLD	plan,	municipalities,	including	Brunswick,	were	
treated	as	separate	stand‐alone	plans	for	funding	and	benefits.		In	electing	to	join	the	PLD	plan,	
municipalities	brought	into	that	plan	any	liability	or	surplus	they	had	in	their	stand‐alone	plans.		
Brunswick	had	a	surplus,	however,	it	was	the	position	of	MainePERS	that	it	could	not	return	that	
surplus.		Instead,	it	allowed	Brunswick	to	use	a	portion	of	that	surplus	annually	to	reduce	the	
required	employer	contribution.		MainePERS	recently	changed	its	position	and	refunded	the	
remaining	balance	of	the	surplus.	
	
Brunswick	could	elect	to	continue	to	use	a	portion	of	the	refund	to	offset	employer	costs.		However,	
I	have	recommended,	and	the	Finance	Committee	has	agreed,	to	allocate	these	funds	to	the	vehicle	
reserve	accounts.		In	funding	the	reserves,	we	would	have	funds	available	to	replace	equipment	that	
the	adopted	CIP	recommends,	or	that	we	assumed	would	be	funded	with	bonding.		For	instance,	the	
CIP	recommends	funding	a	sidewalk	tractor	for	the	Parks	and	Recreation	Department	with	bonds.		
Without	sufficient	funding,	we	anticipate	that	we	would	also	need	to	fund	a	replacement	ambulance	
with	a	bond.		
	
If	the	Council	agrees	to	appropriate	the	MainePERS	refund	for	the	vehicle	replacement	accounts,	it	
would	need	to	adopt	the	attached	budget	amendment.		The	process	for	amending	the	budget	is	
similar	to	the	one	used	to	adopt	the	budget.		It	requires	setting	and	holding	a	public	hearing,	and	a	
vote	on	the	amendment	ten	or	more	days	following	the	public	hearing.	



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of Funding the 
Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a budget for the 2015-16 fiscal year (the 
“Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a Capital Improvement Plan for the 2016-
2021 fiscal years (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP includes Vehicle & Equipment Reserve funding as well as certain individual 
vehicle and equipment items to be funded individually; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the CIP policy, replacement vehicles with a life expectancy of 
less than 15 years and a cost less than $325,000 should be funded through the Vehicle & Equipment 
Reserve Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to insufficient balances in the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Funds, the CIP includes 
certain vehicle and equipment items with a cost less than $325,000 to be funded through the issuance of 
bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, in August, 2015 the Town received $136,481 from MainePERS in payment of the Town’s 
Individual Unpooled Unfunded Actuarial Asset (IUUAA) balance as of June 30, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has determined that a suitable use for the $136,481 IUUAA funds is to 
be appropriated for the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 504 of the Charter of the Town of Brunswick provides a method for amending the 
Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the Budget  at 
least ten days prior to the adoption of this resolution; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED: 
 
The 2015-16 Budget is amended to appropriate a sum of one hundred and thirty-six thousand, four 
hundred and eighty-one dollars ($136,481) for the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds.  

 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 5, 2015 
Public Hearing:     
Adopted by Town Council:  
 



	

O:\Council\Memos	to	Council\2015\Memo	Sidewalk	Tractor	100115.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	 	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 October	1,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Parks	and	Recreation	Sidewalk	Tractor	
	
	
	
Attached	is	an	order	that	authorizes	the	Town	Manager	to	purchase	a	sidewalk	tractor	for	the	Parks	
and	Recreation	Department.		The	adopted	2016‐20	CIP	recommends	that	the	purchase	of	this	piece	
of	equipment	be	funded	from	general	obligation	bonds.		We	have	recommended,	and	the	Finance	
Committee	has	agreed,	that	a	recently	received	refund	from	MainePERS	totaling	$136,481	be	used	
to	fund	vehicle	and	equipment	replacement	reserves.		Should	the	Council	agree	with	that	
recommendation,	we	would	purchase	from	the	reserves	rather	than	from	bonding.		Should	the	
Council	not	agree	with	that	recommendation,	we	would	return	to	the	Council	with	a	request	to	
authorize	funding	with	a	bond	ordinance.	
	
As	you	may	recall,	there	was	some	discussion	during	the	CIP	about	the	need	for	this	piece	of	
equipment.		We	believe	that	the	equipment	would	make	a	huge	difference	in	the	department’s	
efficiency	and	effectiveness	in	clearing	sidewalks	of	snow.		The	current	Parks	and	Recreation	
inventory	includes	a	sidewalk	tractor	it	inherited	from	the	Public	Works	Department	that	is	
unreliable	and	should	be	replaced.		Further,	the	sidewalk	tractor	would	also	replace	another	tractor	
used	in	other	department	maintenance	functions.			
	
A	copy	of	a	memo	from	Mr.	Farrell,	Parks	and	Recreation	Director,	explains	how	the	sidewalk	
tractor	would	be	utilized	and	the	equipment	it	would	replace.	
	



 

O:\Orders\Sidewalk Tractor Order.docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
An Order Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Contract 

for the Purchase of a Sidewalk Tractor 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Town Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016-2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP recommends annual funding for the replacement of Parks & Recreation vehicles 
and equipment (“Public & Recreation Vehicle Replacement Reserve”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP recommends funding a Parks and Recreation Sidewalk Tractor from general 
obligation bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, both the Town Manager and the Finance Committee are now recommending that the 
Sidewalk tractor be purchased from the Parks and Recreation Vehicle Replacement Reserve; and  
 
WHEREAS, during the CIP review process the Parks and Recreation Director estimated the total cost of 
the Sidewalk Tractor to be $135,000;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED, the Town Manager is authorized to execute, on behalf of the 
Town of Brunswick, a contract for the purchase of a sidewalk tractor for use in snow removal and other 
maintenance operations. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 5, 2015 
 
Adopted by Town Council: 



/Brunswick Parks and Recreation Department 

Memo 
To: 

From: 

CC: 

Date: 

Re: 

John S. Eldridge Ill, Town Manager 
Julie Henze, Finance Director 

Thomas M. Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation~ 
Peter Baecher, Parks and Facilities Manager 
Sarah St Pierre, Financial Administrative Assistant 

September 30, 2015 

Proposed Sidewalk Tractor/Snowblower - Capital Improvement Plan Item 

As you are aware, the current Capital Improvement Program (CIP) recommends the acquisition of a sidewalk tractor/snowblower in 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016. This piece of equipment would assist parks and recreation department personnel in the clearing of snow 
from approximately nine miles of sidewalks within the town during winter storm events. Many of the routes that are part of this 'M:lrk 
include clearing sidewalks in the neighborhoods surrounding Brunswick Junior High, Coffin and Harriet Beecher Stowe Schools as 
well as Brunswick High School and their respeclive adjoining neighborhoods. 

Attached are specifications for this Multi-Service Vehicle (MSV) as well as detailed specs for a folding v-plow and high capacity 
snow blower. The price quoted for the MSVand needed attachments as updated recently is $130,000 with anticipated trade in of a 
1998 John Deere 4600 Loader which has a replacement cost of approximately $46,000. 

We previously reviewed the details associated with this recommended acquisition with the Town Council at its CIP workshop held 
on March 30, 2015. A summary of the information discussed that evening included the following; 

The past winter presented significant challenges in getting the sidewalk snowplow routes cleared in a timely fashion. This was due 
to the depth of snow as well as the fact that the equipment we use is not designed for the most effective removal of snow from 
sidewalks. Our operators have to repeatedly perform backup maneuvers three and four times to take additional cuts at snow banks 
that can be cleared in a single pass with the MSV being requested. (Please see the attached video that was shared with members 
of the Council that demonstrates this point). 

As explained previously, the department's John Deere tractors with snowblower attachments cannot efficiently clear snow when 
the depth exceeds 24" which is the height capacity of the unit. Our blowers are also 60" to 72" in width which is wider than what is 
necessary to clear the sidewalks. The blowers were originally purchased with the intent to clear parking areas and ice rinks and not 
sidewalks. The wide blower width also increases the amount of time it takes us to clear the sidewalks. The Multi Service Vehicle 
snowblower offers a 43" height capacity and a 50" width. It is unlikely that any single storm would drop in excess of 43" therefore 
requiring only a single pass to clear the sidewalk and not multiple passes as is currently the case with our existing equipment. 

The department also has a 1995 Holder Sidewalk Snowblower that was previously obtained from our public 'M:lrks department that 
has proven unreliable since its transfer in 2011. The Holder has both electrical harness issues as well as transmission problems 
and the equipment has exceeded is useful life. 

With the addition of the MSV we anticipate that we could decrease the time that it typically takes us to clear snow from all sidewalks 
along the nine mile route from three days to one day. Town labor in the form of overtime would be reduced as we could complete 
the route in less time with less manpower. 

With the acquisition of a new MSV we plan to replace the 1998 John Deere 4600 loader which was used primarily for snow 
removal operations with some limited summer use. The department would accomplish the limited summer work that the 4600 
typically performed with other existing tractors within our inventory. Please let me know if you have any additional questions. 

•Page 1 



S
id

e
w

a
lk

 T
ra

ct
o

r 
-

P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

 
• 

R
ep

la
ce

s 
l 

9
9

8
 J

o
h

n
 D

ee
re

 4
6

0
0

 
• 

4
3

" 
h

e
ig

h
t,

 5
0"

 w
id

th
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
CAPJTAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY 

FY 2016-2020 

PROJECT TITLE ·. PROJECT NO. 
Parks and Recreation Sidewalk Tractor 

DEPARTMENT PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORJTY 
Parks and Recreation Dept Director of Parks & Rec 1 

PROJECT LOCATION TlF (Y orN) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years) 
Parks and Recreation Dept N 10 

PROJECTDESCRlPTION Describe the.project and summarize why the project is necessary. Address evaluation criteria. 

This project is for a Multi-Service Vehicle (MSV) as well as a folding v-plow and high capacity snow blower that would be 
used by the Parks and Recreation Department in the clearing of sidewalks during winter snow removal operations. The Town's 
Department of Public Works is anticipating delivery of the same piece of equipment to be used for a variety of applications 
associated with their work including winter sidewalk snow removal. 

In using the department's John Deere tractors with snowblower attachments we cannot efficiently clear snow when the depth 
exceeds 24" which is the height capacity of the unit. Our blowers are also 60" to 72" in width which is wider than what is 
necessary to clear the sidewalks. The blowers were originally purchased with the intent to clear parking areas and ice rinks and 
not sidewalks. The wide blower width also increases the amount of time it takes us to clear the sidewalks. The Multi Service 
Vehicle snowblower offers a 43" height capacity and a 50" width. It is unlikely that any single storm would drop in excess of 
43" therefore requiring only a single pass to clear the sidewalk and not multiple passes as is currently the case with our 
existing equipment. 

The quotation is from Viking Gives USA a distributor based in Lewiston, Maine. 
MB Side Walk Tractor with 11 SHP. Cummins Diesel, Full Time 4-wheel drive, Differential Lock, 31 gpm Load Sense 
Hydraulic Pump, Front Mechanical PTO, AM/FM/CD Stereo, Rear Hydraulics, Wheel Weights, Fire Extinguisher, Rear 
Work Lights, Winter Radials, Air Ride Seat, Air Conditioner in Cab, (not on Roof), 50" High Capacity Snow Blower, 50" 
Fixed V-Plow, Sib Fire Extinguisher. 

PR.OJE.CTSOUJ,lCESAND USES OFFU:NDS (estimates should cover entire cost ofproject) 
I· .. . .... 
Sour~e of Funds: ·• :Thni 6130/15 20!5·!6 2016-17 2017cl8 2018-19 2019-20 . TOTAL 
G.0. Bonds 125,165 125,165 

-
-
-
-

TOTAL SOURCES - 125,165 - - - - 125,165 
Use of Funds: Thru 6/30/ l 5 2015-16 2016;17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL 
Acquisition 125,165 125,165 

-
-

-
. 
. 
. 
. 

TOTAL USES - 125,165 - . - - 125,165 
What is the source and date of your cost estimate? (e;g. preliminary estimate • 6/30/13~ design~ 12/31/12, etc .... ) 

February 2015 quote from Viking Cives (USA) 

Projects2016-20 P&R MSV Page 29 
Printed on: 5/29/2015 

2:55 PM 



CONSISTENCY WITHPLANS AND STUDIES 
Describe how this prctiect is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies. 

,. INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR JNTERAGENCY IMPACT 
E;(plain how this project will impact othet departments or agencies. Do you know of any other project with which this 

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each? 

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS ..... 

Provide an estimate oftheannual costs or savfogs that will result from this project over the'next five (5) years. Show savings as negative . 
. Type ofCost/(Savings) ·.· . 

2015-16 2016-17 2017·18 20HH9 2019-20 TOTAL ', 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

TOTALS (net) - - - - - -
'' Explain the changes in the operating budgets (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.) 

' 

The MSV would save the Town labor in the form of overtime as we could complete the routes in less time with less 
manpower. 

AL TERNA TlVES CONSIDERED & EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT 
:.· ·.. . .. 

. .. Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project What is the effect if this project is not funded or delayed? 

The MSV would replace the 1998 John Deere 4600 loader which was previously scheduled for replacement in 2015-16 at 
a price of$46,000. 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

Projects2016-20 P&R MSV 

Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project. 

Page 30 
Printed on: 5/29/2015 

2:55 PM 



 
 

 
ITEM 103 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Appointments Committee 

SUBJECT: Report for October 5th Appointments 

DATE: 10/1/2015 

 
The Appointments Committee interviewed several people and are making the following 
nominations: 
 
Village Review Board 
 Karen Topp– reappointment for a term to expire on 10/20/2018  
 
Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee 

Lori Bourgeois – appointment as Downtown Business Owner for a term to expire on 
12/01/2017 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 104 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
This item was added to the 
agenda at the meeting 



 

O:\Orders\MRRA Settlement Order.docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
An Order Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Agreement with the Mid 

Coast Regional Redevelopment Authority to Settle Litigation 
 
WHEREAS, the Mid Coast Regional Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”) is a public municipal 
corporation created by the Maine legislature for the purpose of assisting with the successful 
redevelopment of the properties located within the boundaries of the former Brunswick Naval Air Station 
(“BNAS”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Town of Brunswick designated two tax increment financing (“TIF”) districts to assist 
with the redevelopment of BNAS:  (1) the 146-acre Brunswick Executive Airport II Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “Executive Airport District”); and (2) the 542-
acre Brunswick Landing II Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the 
“Brunswick Landing District”) (and collectively the “TIF Districts”), in March 2013, and the State of 
Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) issued conditional approval of 
the TIF Districts on March 29, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town adopted a Development Program for both TIF Districts in July 2013, and DECD 
granted full approval of the two TIF Districts and the Development Programs for both TIF Districts on 
October 24, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, MRRA has appealed the Town of Brunswick Assessor’s determination that certain MRRA 
properties are not exempt from property taxation; and  
 
WHEREAS, MRRA has filed a civil action against the Town now pending in the Cumberland County 
Superior Court, Docket NO. CV-2014-201 (“pending action”); and 
 
WHEREAS, MRRA and the Town wish to avoid litigation; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a resolution to the pending action, the MRRA and the Town have a negotiated a 
Memorandum of Agreement attached to this order as Exhibit A (“MOA”); and 
 
NOW THERFORE, BE IT ORDERED, the Town Manager is authorized to execute the MOA on 
behalf of the Town of Brunswick. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 5, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council: October 5, 2015 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

1 

Memorandum of Agreement 
 
 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT is made as of the _____ day of October 2015 

between Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”), a public municipal corporation, 

with principal place of business of 15 Terminal Road, Suite 200, Brunswick, ME 04011 and the 

Town of Brunswick, a municipal corporation located in Brunswick, County of Cumberland and 

State of Maine, with offices at 85 Union Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011 (hereinafter "the Town"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, MRRA is a public municipal corporation created by the Maine legislature for 

the purpose of assisting with the successful redevelopment of the properties located within the 

boundaries of the former Brunswick Naval Air Station (“BNAS”); and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Brunswick designated two tax increment financing (“TIF”) 

districts to assist with the redevelopment of BNAS:  (1) the 146-acre Brunswick Executive Airport 

II Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “Executive Airport District”) 

and (2) the 542-acre Brunswick Landing II Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District (the “Brunswick Landing District”) (collectively the “TIF Districts”) in March 2013, and 

the State of Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) issued 

conditional approval of the TIF Districts on March 29, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, the Town adopted a Development Program for both TIF Districts in July 

2013 and DECD granted full approval of the two TIF Districts and the Development Programs for 

both TIF Districts on October 24, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the two Development Programs set aside up to fifty percent (50%) of tax 

increment financing revenues (“TIF Revenues”) for possible sharing with MRRA, and/or 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

2 

individual developers within the TIF Districts and set a total aggregate reimbursement cap to 

MRRA of $12 million; and  

WHEREAS, a portion of the TIF Revenues are sought by MRRA to support new 

infrastructure investment or reinvestment in repair or replacement of existing infrastructure and 

related physical improvements necessary to maintain the property and attract business within the 

former BNAS; and 

WHEREAS, MRRA has leased a portion of the property (“subject property”) to Kestrel 

Aircraft Company, Inc. (“Kestrel”); and 

WHEREAS, a dispute has arisen as to whether MRRA is entitled to the aeronautical tax 

exemption pursuant to 36 M.R.S. § 651(1)(F); and 

WHEREAS, MRRA has filed a civil action against the Town now pending in the 

Cumberland County Superior Court, Docket NO. CV-2014-201 (“pending action”); and 

WHEREAS, MRRA and the Town wish to avoid litigation; and  

WHEREAS, as a resolution to the pending action, the parties to this Agreement intend to 

have the Town Council amend the Development Programs to allow for an allocation of TIF 

Revenues that is different from that which is currently set forth in the Development Programs and 

intend to negotiate and enter into a credit enhancement agreement between the Town and MRRA 

(the “CEA”) to memorialize the new allocation of TIF Revenues; and 

WHEREAS, the parties understand and acknowledge that any future amendments to the 

Development Programs will require approval of the Brunswick Town Council and the approval of 

DECD pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(5) and the parties further acknowledge that the CEA 

will need approval of the Brunswick Town Council. 

  



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

3 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties to this Agreement agree to the following: 

1. MRRA acknowledges that the Town and the Town’s assessor or agents shall be 

responsible for the interpretation and application of any aeronautical property tax 

exemption specified in Title 36 MRSA § 651 (the “exemption”).  MRRA agrees 

that MRRA and its assigns and successors shall not challenge or appeal the Town’s 

interpretation and application of the exemption, and further agrees that all future 

leases of property in the Executive Airport District shall include language 

substantially to the effect that:  MRRA and not Lessee is the taxpayer; MRRA has 

sole decision-making authority regarding real estate taxes for the property, 

including deciding whether to apply for any possible tax exemptions or tax 

abatements; and that Lessee agrees that Lessee will not claim third-party status as 

the taxpayer, will not challenge the tax treatment of the property in any way, 

including applying for a tax exemption or tax abatement; and Lessee agrees that any 

violation of these tax-related provisions will be deemed a default under the Lease.   

2. Should subsequent legislative action or judicial interpretation result in the Town 

changing its interpretation and application of the aeronautical property tax 

exemption causing the values of Hangars 4, 5, and 6 to become tax exempt, MRRA 

agrees that the aggregate TIF Revenues reimbursement cap specified in the CEA 

shall be reduced to correspond to the dollar amount of the property tax exemption. 

3. Upon each payment of property taxes paid on the real property located inside the 

TIF Districts, the Town will deposit into the development program fund described 

in the Development Programs for the TIF Districts (the “Development Program 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

4 

Fund”) the entirety of the property tax payments constituting TIF Revenues.  The 

Development Program Fund contains a Project Cost Account that has subaccounts 

for the Town and for Base Redevelopment.  The Base Redevelopment subaccount 

of the Project Cost Account is to be used to fund payments to MRRA and/or 

individual developers within the Districts.   

4. From the Development Program Fund, the Town will deposit equal amounts into 

the subaccounts of the Project Cost Account, using the following method. 

a. Base Redevelopment subaccount: 

i. one hundred percent (100%) of the TIF Revenues generated by 

“aeronautical business” (as defined herein) tenants within Hangars 4, 5 

and 6 (parcels 040-250, 040-005 and 040-006 respectively, as further 

shown on Exhibit A) in the Executive Airport District, and   

ii. fifty percent (50%) of the TIF Revenues generated by all other tenants 

within Hangars 4, 5 and 6 (parcels 040-250, 040-005 and 040-006 

respectively, as further shown on Exhibit A), and all other properties 

within the Executive Airport District, and 

iii. twenty-five percent (25%) of the TIF Revenues generated by the 

Brunswick Landing District. 

iv. an amount, to be determined and only if needed, of the TIF Revenues 

generated by the TIF Districts, to equalize the annual amount in the 

Base Redevelopment subaccount to fifty percent (50%) of the total 

annual TIF Revenues from both TIF Districts. 

b. Town subaccount: 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

5 

i. fifty percent (50%) of the TIF Revenues generated by all other tenants 

within Hangars 4, 5 and 6 (parcels 040-250, 040-005 and 040-006 

respectively), and all other properties within the Executive Airport 

District, and 

ii. seventy-five percent (75%) of the TIF Revenues generated by the 

Brunswick Landing District. 

iii. an amount, to be determined and only if needed, of the TIF Revenues 

generated by the TIF Districts, to equalize the annual amount in the 

Town subaccount to fifty percent (50%) of the total annual TIF 

Revenues from both TIF Districts. 

c. Periodically, any TIF Revenues that remain deposited in the Base 

Redevelopment subaccount of the Project Cost account that are not allocated to 

either MRRA or a developer will revert back to the Town’s subaccount of the 

Project Cost Account. 

5. For the purpose of this Agreement, "aeronautical business" means the act, practice 

of, or instruction in the art and science of transportation by aircraft, and operation, 

construction, repair or maintenance of aircraft, airports and air navigation facilities.  

Such uses shall include:  

Air carrier.  "Air carrier" means a person who undertakes, whether directly or 
indirectly or by lease or other arrangement, to engage in air commerce and is 
certificated under Federal Air Regulations. 
 
Air commerce.  "Air commerce" means the carriage by aircraft of persons or 
property for compensation or hire, when that carriage is a major enterprise for 
profit and not merely incidental to a person's other business. 
 
Aircraft Construction.  “Aircraft construction” means the design, construction, 
manufacturing or assembly of aircraft that would require the presence of an airfield 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

6 

as an integral part of its business operation for the design, testing, sale or 
distribution of aircraft. 
 
Aircraft dealer.  "Aircraft dealer" means any person engaged in the sale or 
purchase or manufacture of new or used aircraft. 
 
Air navigation facility.  "Air navigation facility" means any facility used in, 
available for use in, or designed for use in aid of air navigation, including airports, 
lights, any apparatus or equipment for disseminating weather information, for 
signaling, for radio-directional finding, or for radio or other electrical 
communication, and any other structure or mechanism having a similar purpose for 
guiding or controlling flight in the air or the landing and takeoff of aircraft. 
 
Air taxi.  "Air taxi" means a person who undertakes, whether directly or indirectly 
or by lease or other arrangement, to engage in air commerce and who possesses an 
Air Taxi Commercial Operators Certificate issued by the Federal Aviation 
Administration under 14 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 135. 
 
Aviation Fueling Facilities. “Aviation Fueling Facilities” means entities that 
provide aircraft fueling services. 
 
Basing aircraft. "Basing aircraft" means storing, parking, tying down or mooring 
aircraft in Maine for more than 30 consecutive calendar days. 
 
Maintenance, Overhaul or Repair (MRO) “MRO” means any business or entity 
involved in the maintenance, overhaul or repair of aircraft, aircraft components and 
aircraft completions. 
 

6. The Town will amend the Development Programs for the Executive Airport 

District and the Brunswick Landing District to reflect the terms set forth in this 

Agreement. 

7. The Town will further amend the Development Programs for the Executive Airport 

District and the Brunswick Landing District to establish the aggregate cap on 

potential TIF Revenues to be available (not guaranteed) to MRRA over the life of 

the TIF Districts as a total of $15 million.  This cap on potential TIF Revenues to be 

available (not guaranteed) to MRRA is subject to change as specified in item #2 of 

this Agreement. 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

7 

8. The Town will include in the CEA:  (a) a provision setting forth the mechanism 

through which MRRA will apply for TIF Revenues; and (b) the procedures 

governing the Town’s payment of TIF Revenues to MRRA when such payments 

have been approved by the Town. 

9. The Town agrees that once the amended Development Programs have received 

final approval from DECD, any and all TIF Revenues collected by the Town from 

the TIF Districts since July 1, 2013 shall be allocated between the subaccounts of 

the Project Cost Account as set forth in the amended Development Programs.  It is 

the Town’s intent that the provisions of the amended Development Programs will 

be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. 

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the  

obligations of the parties set forth in this Agreement, including but not limited to 

the obligation to allocate TIF Revenues to the Base Redevelopment subaccount and 

to make such TIF Revenues available to MRRA, are conditioned on both amended 

Development Programs receiving full and final approval by DECD, and further 

conditioned on the Town and MRRA negotiating and executing a CEA that is 

consistent with the terms of the amended Development Programs.  

11. Upon execution of this Agreement, MRRA and Town will file a joint motion to 

stay proceedings in the pending action for 120 days with the Cumberland County 

Superior Court in a similar form to the document attached as Exhibit B. 

12. Upon the approval and adoption of a CEA between Town and MRRA and upon 

final approval of amendments to the Development Program by DECD, all terms 



 

F:\Finance\MRRA\Tax Appeal\MOA docs\MOA Between MRRA and Brunswick (Final Draft).docx 
 

8 

and conditions described in this Agreement shall be superseded and integrated into 

the CEA. 

13. At such time as the CEA and the amendments to the Development Programs are 

approved by the Brunswick Town Council and the DECD, respectively, MRRA 

shall file a motion to dismiss the lawsuit with prejudice and without costs. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed effective 
on the date indicated above, and certifies that the execution and delivery of this Agreement has 
been duly authorized by all necessary action. 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
 
 
____________________ 
John Eldridge  
Town Manager 
 
 
 
MIDCOAST REGIONAL REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
____________________ 
Steven Levesque 
Executive Director 

 


	ca a yes
	ca a minuete sept 21
	ca b no
	ca c yes
	ca c WARRANT 11-03-15
	ca d no
	mr a yes
	mr a SolarizePressRelease28Sep2015
	mr b no
	mr c no
	mr d no
	97 yes
	97 spedial admin_20150929144513
	98 yes
	98 FULL Memo BHS Boiler Replacement 090215
	99 yes
	99 mooring memo
	100 yes
	100 Memo Social Services 092215
	101 yes
	102 yes
	102 Oct 5 2015-16 Budget Amendment PH
	103 yes
	103 app committee report for 10-5-2015 along with app



